
 
GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
October 31, 2024 

 
Open to the public 

9:00 AM Governmental Center – 2nd floor Committee Room 
400 Boardman Ave, Traverse City, MI 49684 

                                                                                                                                                           
Persons with disabilities which the foregoing opportunities for participation will not address should 
contact Darcey Gratton at (231) 932-3010 or dgratton@gtpavilions.org with questions or concerns.   

AGENDA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
 

2. ROLL CALL  
 

3. FIRST PUBLIC COMMENT 
Any person shall be permitted to address a meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of 
Health and Human Services Board which is required to be open to the public under the provisions 
of the Michigan Open Meetings Act, as amended.  (MCLA 15.261, et.seq.)  Public comment shall 
be carried out in accordance with the following Board Rules and Procedures: 

1. Any person wishing to address the Board shall state his or her name and address. 
2. Persons may address the Board on matters which are relevant to Grand Traverse 

Pavilions issues. 
3. No person shall be allowed to speak more than once on the same matter, excluding time 

needed to answer Board Members questions.  The Chairperson shall control the amount 
of time each person shall be allowed to speak, which shall not exceed three (3) minutes. 

a) Chairperson may, at his or her discretion, extend the amount of time any person is 
allowed to speak. 

b) Whenever a group wishes to address the Board, the Chairperson may require that 
the group designate a spokesperson; the Chairperson shall control the amount of 
time the spokesperson shall be allowed to speak, which shall not exceed fifteen 
(15) minutes. 

 
The Board shall not comment or respond to a person who is addressing the Board.  Silence or 
non-response from the Board should not be interpreted as disinterest or disagreement by the 
Board. 
 
Please be respectful and refrain from personal or political attacks. 
 

4. COUNTY LIAISON REPORT 
 

5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping items to be dealt with by 

one Board motion without discussion.  Any member of the Board, or staff may ask that any item 

on the consent calendar be removed and placed elsewhere on the agenda for discussion.  Such 

requests will be automatically respected. 

 

 



If any item is not removed from the consent calendar, the item on the agenda is approved by a 

single Board action adopting the consent calendar. 

 

A.  Review and File           HANDOUT# 
(1)       Draft Minutes of the 9/26/24 Board Meeting     1 
(2)       Draft Minutes of the 10/17/24 Special Board Meeting   2 
(3)       Closed Minutes of the 10/17/24 Special Board Meeting   Handout 
(4)       September Resident Council Minutes     3 

 
7. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
8. CHAIRMAN REPORT         Verbal 

 

9. SERVICE EXCELLANCE AWARDS        4 
 

10. GRAND TRAVERSE MEDICAL CARE  
A.  General Information           

(1)       Cottages Master Plan Update – Eckert Wordell    Verbal 
(2)       Annual State Survey Update       Verbal 
(3)       Quality Measures Summary        5 
(4)       3rd Quarter Overtime Report       6 

   
B.  Chief Executive Officer Board Report      7 

 
C.  Business 

(1)    Financials         8 

(2)       2025 Capital Budget        9 

(3)       2025 Operating Budgets        10 

(4)       Proposed Teamsters Local 214 RN Unit     11 

   2025-2027 Agreement 

(5)       Proposed Teamsters Local 214 LPN Unit     12 

   2025-2027 Agreement 

(6)       Proposed Teamsters Local 214 General Unit    13 

   2025-2027 Agreement 

(7)       Proposed 2025 Non-union Wage Recommendation    14 

(8)       Request for Purchase – Asphalt Repairs      15 

(9)       Cottage Governance Recommendation     Verbal 

(10) Resolution 2024 - 3 – 2025 Proposed Cottages Rate Changes  16 

  

 

D.       General Discussion 
(1)  

  
E. Medical Staff 

(1)      Korinne Swain, O.D.          17 
           

G.T.P. Announcements   
(1)     Next Board Meeting – November 25, 2024 

      
11. SECOND PUBLIC COMMENT 

Refer to Rules under First Public Comment above. 
 

12. ADJOURNMENT 



DRAFT  

 

1 
 

GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 

1000 Pavilions Circle, Traverse City, MI 49684 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 26, 2024 MEETING 

 
 
PRESENT: Mary Marois, Haider Kazim, Carol Crawford       Board  
  Gerard Bodalski, Darcey Gratton        Staff  
 
ABESENT: TJ Andrews                 Commission  
         
GUESTS:  

 
The regular meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services 
Board was called to order at 9:00am by Board Chair Mary Marois at Garfield Township.    

 
First Public Comment  
Amber Pelton 
 
County Liaison Report – none 
 
Approval of Agenda – Chair Marois asked if there were additions, changes or corrections to 
the agenda.  Motion was made by Kazim to approve the agenda as presented, seconded by 
Crawford and carried unanimously.  
     
The purpose of the Consent Calendar is to expedite business by grouping items to be dealt with 
by one Board motion without discussion.  Any member of the Board or staff may ask that any 
item on the Consent Calendar be removed and placed elsewhere on the agenda for discussion.  
Such requests will be automatically respected.  

 
REVIEW AND FILE 
  

(1)       Draft Minutes of the 8/26/24 Board Meeting 
(2)       Closed Minutes of the 8/26/24 Board Meeting 
(3)       August Resident Council Minutes 

 
Motion was made by Crawford to approve the Consent Calendar as presented.  Motion 
seconded by Marois.  Kazim abstained due to his absence during the 8/26/24 Board meeting. 
Motion carried.   
 
Items Removed From Consent Calendar – none 
 
Chairman Report – No report. 
 
Service Excellence Awards – Marois reviewed August Service Excellence Awards. 
  
Cottage Master Plan Update – Bodalski shared that a grant was submitted to Rotary Charities 
to help fund the cost of the estimate provided by Eckert Wordel.  Bodalski stated the project is 
expected to be completed by December 1, 2024.   

Page 3 of 66

dgratton
Text Box
1



DRAFT  

 

2 
 

 
Simply the Best Award – Bodalski shared the Pavilions received the Record Eagles Simply the 
Best Award for #1 Wellness Center and #3 in Senior Services. 
 
Annual State Survey and Life Safety Inspection – Bodalski reported that the Annual State 
Survey was conducted during the week of September 16th.  Bodalski shared what was reported 
during the surveyors exit interview but is waiting on the final written reports.   
 
Union Negotiations – Bodalski shared that union negotiations for the RN, LPN and General 
Bargaining units have begun for renewal of a three year contract.   
 
Preliminary 2025 Budget Update – Bodalski shared he is working with the leadership team on 
a preliminary 2025 budget and will have proposed budget by the end of October. The board 
agreed to review the preliminary budget beforehand to be able to decide if a special meeting will 
be needed to discuss.   
 
Chief Executive Officer Report – Bodalski reviewed the monthly report for August and 
answered board members’ questions. 
 
Financial Report – Bodalski presented the financial operations and social accountability reports 
for August 2024 and answered board members’ questions.  Motion made by Crawford to accept 
the financial operations report as presented.  Motion seconded by Kazim and carried 
unanimously. Roll Call - Marois – yes, Kazim – yes, Crawford – yes. 
 
Request to Purchase – Pool Resurfacing – Bodalski reviewed the request to resurface the 
therapy pool.  Three bids were solicited with only one bid received by Midwest Pools, Inc.   
Motion was made by Kazim to resurface the therapy pool in the amount of $27,250.  Motion was 
seconded by Crawford and carried unanimously. Roll Call - Marois – yes, Kazim – yes, 
Crawford – yes. 
 
Kaitlyn Vanias, M.D. - Consulting Privileges - Bodalski reviewed the request of Kaitlyn 
Vanias, M.D., to have consulting privileges as recommended by Medical Director Dr. April 
Kirkowski, M.D. Crawford noted the form provided showed Kaitlyn’s test results pending under 
Board Certified and requested for the results to be verified that she has passed.  Motion was 
made by Crawford to approve Kaitlyn Vanias, M.D., for consulting privileges contingent on 
confirming that she is Board Certified. Motion was seconded by Kazim and carried unanimously. 
Roll Call - Marois – yes, Kazim – yes, Crawford – yes. 
 
Grand Traverse Pavilions Announcements  

(1) Next Board Meeting October 31, 2024  
 
Second Public Comment  
Linda Pepper 
McKenzie Beeman 
 
Meeting adjourned at 10:13 am 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4 of 66



DRAFT  

 

3 
 

Signatures:  
 
 
 

Mary Marois – Chair 
Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 
Date:                                   Approved 
                                   Corrected and Approved 
 

Page 5 of 66



 

1 
 

                                                                                            
GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 
1000 Pavilions Circle, Traverse City, MI 49684 

 
MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 17, 2024 

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 
    
PRESENT: Mary Marois, Haider Kazim, Carol Crawford       Board  
  Gerard Bodalski, Darcey Gratton        Staff  
  TJ Andrews               County 
ABSENT:     
GUESTS: Jeffrey Segal of Warner Norcross + Judd (virtual),  
  Rob Hentschel, Grand Traverse County Commissioner 
     
The special board meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human 
Services Board was called to order at 9:02 am by Board Chair Mary Marois in the Board room at 
Grand Traverse Pavilions.   
 
Roll Call - Marois – yes, Kazim – yes, Crawford – yes 
 
First Public Comment - none 
 
Motion was made by Kazim seconded by Crawford to go into Closed Session at 9:02 am for the 
purpose of Closed session pursuant to section 8(e) of the Open Meetings Act, to consult with 
our attorney regarding trial or settlement strategy in connection with pending litigation, DHHS 
and the Grand Traverse Pavilions Foundation Board v PACE North. 
 
Motion was made by Kazim to come out of Closed Session at 10:01 am, seconded by Crawford 
and carried unanimously. 
 
Motion was made by Kazim to authorize attorney to proceed with recommendations as 
discussed in closed session, seconded by Crawford and carried unanimously.  
Roll Call Vote - Marois – yes, Kazim – yes, Crawford – yes 
 
Meeting adjourned at 10:03 am 
 
Signatures:  
 
 
 

Mary Marois – Chair 
Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 
 
Date: October 31, 2024      Approved 
                                   Corrected and Approved 

Page 6 of 66

dgratton
Text Box
2



PAVILIONS RESIDENT COUNCIL MEETING  
September 19, 2024 

 
The September 2024 meeting of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Resident Council was 
called to order at 11:00 am in the Multi-Purpose Room by Hanna Wooters. 
 
All residents were welcomed. 
The residents waived their right to a closed meeting. 
The Lord’s Prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance were recited. 
 
Members Present: Residents are marked “X” throughout the minutes. 
Birch Pavilion: 3 residents attended. 
Cherry Pavilion: 5 residents attended. 
Dogwood Pavilion: 3 residents attended. 
 
Staff members were introduced: 
Hanna Wooters, CTRS, Life Enrichment 
Sam Mahon, CTRS, Life Enrichment 
Clay Wagatha, Marketing/Life Enrichment 
Emily Tyrell, Cherry Pavilion Social Work 
Christian Andersen, Executive Chef- Forefront Dining Services 
Ryan Hutchins, Environmental Services Director, Environmental Services 
Cati Jasso, Environmental Services Assistant, Environmental Services 
Lisa Telling, Forefront Services 
 
Guest: American Sign Language (ASL) interpreter – Tom Hoxy 
 
Old Business: There was not any old business from the previous meeting that needed 

to be brought up for discussion or to follow-up on. 

New Business: 
Hanna made the following announcements:  
-Joey the bird is now in the Brich Activity Room 
-Ryan made the following announcement: 
-The new bus is expected to be done mid-December. The bus is like the current little 
bus but can hold more wheelchairs with a capacity for 7 wheelchairs. 
 
Outings for October 2024:  
 
-Fall Color Tour – 2 Trips: Thursday October 10th 10:30-12:30 and Thursday October 
17th 2-4 
 
Gallaghers Farm: Friday October 25th 2:15-4 
 
Hanna said we can choose between a shopping or lunch outing and residents voted for 
a shopping outing to take place in October. 
 

Page 7 of 66

dgratton
Text Box
3



Special Events for October 2024: 
 
-Wednesday September 25th – 10:30am Bingo Store 
 
-Thursday October 2nd – 2pm Rick Hilleary – Lyrical Hiker (saxophone, flute music) 
 
-Sunday October 13th – 2pm Salvation Army Music Group 
 
-Tuesday October 15th – Lord of the Gourds – Pumpkin Carving 
 
-Friday October 18th – 10:30am Music with Tally and Bob 
 
-Thursday October 24th – 2pm Grand Traverse Musicale 
 
-Monday – October 28th Pumpkin Decorating Contest 
 
Resident Group Interview Questions: 

Hanna discussed with the attending residents that are 12 resident rights that are 
reviewed during the group interview with the State Surveyors during our annual survey, 
and today we will be reviewing Building. 
 
Building:  
I would like to ask a few questions about the building, including both your bedroom and 
other rooms you use such as the dining room and activity rooms. 

• Is the air temperature comfortable for you? 
-Residents responded yes. 
-One resident said the halls were cold. 

 

• Is there good air circulation or does it get stuffy in these rooms? 
-Residents stated the circulation was fine. 
 

• What do you think about the noise level here? During the day is it generally quiet or 
noisy? During the night is it generally quiet or noisy? 
-Residents said it was fine. 
-Resident stated it was noisy outside of their bedroom window. 
-Resident said some noise at night but she understands her room is by a charting 
screen. 

 

• Do you have the right amount of lighting in your room to read or do whatever you want 
to do? 
-Residents said it was good. 
-Resident said it could be a little brighter. 
 

• How is the lighting in the dining room and activity rooms? 
-No concerns at this time. 
 

Page 8 of 66



• Do you ever see insects or rodents in the building? 
-No concerns at this time. 

 

• Is your call light put within reach in your room at all times? 
-Residents said yes. 
-Resident stated housekeeping left their call light out of reach after cleaning. 
Environmental Services to follow up with housekeeping. 

 

• How does staff respond to call lights? 
-Resident stated its “hard time getting them to come in.” 
-Residents said the times seem to change but has seemed slow. 
 

1.  Discussion regarding food temperature and receiving HS snacks. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 

- Resident asked why meals are getting later and later? 
o Christian responded that meals are delivered to units on time 

- Two other residents said they love the omelets, and their meals have been on 
time. 

- Resident asked for something other than burger and suggested meatloaf or pork 
chops. 

o Christian said he will try and get those on the upcoming menu 
- Christian stated the “Lets Talk Food” meeting is rescheduled for Wednesday 

September 25th at 2 pm. 
 
2.  Discussion regarding the cleanliness of the facility and laundry being returned 
promptly. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 

- Residents said it was good and everything is clean. 
- Resident stated it has improved. 

 
3.  Discussion regarding room temperature. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions:  

- No additional concerns reported at this time. 
 
4.  Discussion regarding nursing care. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 

- Resident stated their fingernails need cut. 
- No additional concerns reported at this time. 

 
5.  Discussion regarding call lights being answered in a timely manner. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 

Page 9 of 66



- No additional concerns reported at this time. 
 

6.  Discussion regarding receiving showers as needed/as requested. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions:              

- Resident stated they thought it was supposed to be Wednesday but it doesn’t 
repeat, would like to know the shower schedule.  

o Hanna stated they will look into and pass her concerns to nursing 
 
7. Discussion regarding the nighttime noise level on your Pavilion. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 

- No additional concerns were reported at this time. 
 
The floor was opened for additional comments: 

- Resident wants sloppy joes and pizza, has not had them in a long time 
- Resident wants a raw veggie plate with carrots, celery, cauliflower, etc 

o Other residents agreed and said that would be nice. Christian said that’s 
something they could do 

- Resident asked for snacks in the fridge on Cherry, like cheese and fruit 
 
 
The next Pavilions Resident Council meeting will be held on Thursday, October 17th at 
11:00am in the Multi-Purpose Room. Hanna asked for a volunteer to read over and sign 
the September 2024 minutes, and X said that she would do this. The Pavilions Resident 
Council Meeting was adjourned at 11:25 am by Hanna, seconded by X.     
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
_______________________    
Clayton Wagatha, 
Marketing/Life Enrichment 
 
______________________ 
X, Cherry Resident 
 
 

Page 10 of 66



Elm Resident Council Minutes 
Meeting Held- September 24 2024 

 
The March meeting of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Elm Resident Council was called to order at 
2:06pm in the Elm Common Area. 
 
Members Present were: Residents are marked “X” throughout the minutes. 
14 residents attended. 
 
Staff Present: 
Susan Eldred, Recreation Therapist 
Naomi Rode, Assistant Director of Nursing 
Emily Tyrrell, Social Worker 
 
Old Business:  
None 
 
New Business: 
Asked the residents if they need help do the staff help them.  
X stated “yeah just a little.” X and X stated “yes.” 
 
Asked the residents if they were being offered a snack before bed.  
X stated “yes” they were being offered. 
 
Asked the residents if the staff were respectful to the residents.  
X, X and X stated “yes” they were treated with respect. 
 
Asked the residents if the food is good here.  
X and X stated “yes” the food is good. X stated “pretty good” and X stated “yeah.” 
 
Asked the residents if the rooms were getting cleaned.  
X stated “yeah sure everything taken care of.” X stated “yes.” 
 
Asked the residents if their clothes are getting cleaned. 
X stated “I don’t remember.” X, X and X stated “yes.” 
 
Asked the residents if the Temperature in the room is good.  
X, X and X stated “yes.” X stated “I know so” and X stated “ I think so.” 
 
Asked the residents if they have enough to do. 
X stated “more popcorn” and X stated “yes.”  
 
 
Questions, Suggestions, Concerns and Comments: 
The floor was open for questions, suggestions, concerns and comments.  
 
Suggestions for upcoming activities: 
Cider and Donuts 

Page 11 of 66



Decorate Pumpkins 
Carmel and Apples 
Pumpkin muffins or fluff 
Leaf Art 
 
 
Outings 
Fall Leaf Tour 
 
 
Meeting was closed at 2:26pm 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 
Susan Eldred, CTRS  Naomi Rode, BSN, RN   Emily Tyrrell, LLBSW 
 

Page 12 of 66



GRAND TRAVERSE PAVILIONS 

Service Excellence Award Program 

September 2024 

  

Date: 09/02/2024 
Employee: Kristin Mikowski 

Awarded for: 

Kristy is the definition of an unsung hero. What she does for our team many might not 
notice because she’s done it so well for so long. For 17 of the 24 years she’s been with 
Grand Traverse Pavilions, she has managed our Payroll. Never once, in 17 years, has 
she missed a payroll. She lives our core value of excellence, probably never realizing 
how many countless employees relied on her consistency and dedication to her role. 

Position: Human Resources – Payroll 

Nominated by: Levi Petrone, Human Resources Director 

 
 
 

 

Date: 09/02/2024 
Employee: Gretchen Limbocker 

Awarded for: 

I’m honored to nominate Gretchen, a custodian for 24 years at Grand Traverse 
Pavilions, for the Service Excellence Award. Working quietly in the background, 
Gretchen exemplifies the core value of servanthood, ensuring our residents, staff, and 
families enjoy a clean, safe, and welcoming environment. Her hard work and dedication 
often go unnoticed, yet they are crucial to fulfilling our mission of enhancing the quality 
of life for those we serve. Gretchen’s positive attitude and kindness make her a quiet 
cornerstone in our facility. 

Position: Custodian 

Nominated by: Cati Jasso, Environmental Services Manager 

 
 
 
 

Date: 09/09/2024 
Employee: Desmond Gore 

Awarded for: 

Desmond stepped in on his day off to support the night shift in rehab during a 
particularly challenging time. His dedication, compassion, and teamwork were 
invaluable, and his willingness to go above and beyond did not go unnoticed. We are 
incredibly grateful for his commitment and support. Thank you, Desmond! 

Position: CNA 

Nominated by: Linda Smith, RN 

 
 
 
 

Date: 09/09/2024 
Employee: Jeremy Klimas 

Awarded for: 
Jeremy has an exceptional work ethic! His hard work, ability to complete his job and 
assist all our patients and nurses is so much appreciated! Thank you for all of your hard 
work! 

Position: CNA 

Nominated by: Linda Smith, RN 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 13 of 66

dgratton
Text Box
4



Date: 09/16/2024 
Employee: Madison Joslin 

Awarded for: 
Thank you for handling a stressful weekend with ease and exceptional communication. 
We appreciate you! 

Position:  Universal Worker 

Nominated by: Melissa Gomez, Residential Services Director 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Date: 09/16/2024 
Employee: Betsy Stepka 

Awarded for: 
Betsy jumped in to provide care assistance alongside the CNAs on a day it was much 
needed. Her exemplary teamwork and positive attitude are much appreciated! 

Position:  RN 

Nominated by: Erica Harpe, RN 

Date: 09/23/2024 
Employee: Bryce Harner 

Awarded for: Coming upstairs and lending a helping hand when needed was very much appreciated 
Position:  CNA 

Nominated by: Ashley Joseph, CNA 

Date: 09/23/2024 
Employee: Shawma Barnes 

Awarded for: 
Always going above and beyond for our rehab residents to ensure they are getting what 
they need to succeed and progress during their stay! 

Position:  ADON 

Nominated by: Kelsea Robinson, Certified Occupational Therapy Assistant (COTA) 

Date: 09/30/2024 
Employee: Megan McLain 
Awarded for: Always being happy to step up and help with our patients. 
Position:  CNA 

Nominated by: Lauren Glass, RN 

Date: 09/30/2024 
Employee: Ali Goodwin 

Awarded for: 
Thank you for providing excellent training to new staff while also navigating your shift 
with new residents and heavy workloads. You have provided comfort to these new 
employees. You are appreciated! 

Position:  UW 

Nominated by: Melissa Gomez, Residential Services Director 

Page 14 of 66



Quality Measure Summary for October 2024 

 

The latest CMS refresh of Quality Measures was October 23, 2024. Four of the Quality Measures 
remain frozen until January of 2025. They are:  

Long-Stay 

- % of high-risk residents with pressure injuries. 
- % of residents whose need for help with daily activities has increased. 
- % of residents whose ability to move independently worsened.  

Short-Stay 

- % of residents who made improvements in function. 

So we remain at a two star. Our improvements were: 

- Short-Stay: % of residents receiving antipsychotics improved from 60 to 80 points. 
- Short-Stay: rate of successful return to home improved from 90 to 120 points. 
- Short-Stay: % of pressure injuries new or worsened improved from 20 to 40 points.  
- Long-Stay: catheters left inserted in the bladder improved from 80 to 100 points. 

Need improvement were: 

- Short-Stay: % of discharged residents who were readmitted to the hospital. 
- Short-Stay: # of residents who had an outpatient ER visit. 
- Long-Stay: # of hospitalizations per 1,000 resident days. 
- Long-Stay: # of outpatient ER visits per 1,000 resident days.  

Our total points increased from 1090 to 1137. We must reach 1171 points to reach 3 stars in Quality 
Measures. We continue to focus on improvements, recognizing that CMS uses a four-quarter 
average in the scoring system. Some measures are driven by the MDS and others are claims based. 
At the January 2025 refresh we will have the latest 4 quarter averages.   

    

Page 15 of 66

dgratton
Text Box
5



Department 3rd Qtr 2024 2nd Qtr 2024 1st Qtr 2024 4th Qtr 2023

Administration -$ 0.000% 8.57$ 0.000% 25.63$ 0.001% 463.98$ 0.012%

Adult Day Services -$ 0.000% -$ 0.000%  $             - 0.000%  $             - 0.000%

Child Day Care 275.85$ 0.006% 108.81$ 0.003% 1,371.65$ 0.030% 538.04$ 0.014%

CNA 68,069.11$ 1.527% 30,768.27$ 0.908% 68,401.19$ 1.565% 52,222.11$ 1.394%

CNA Training 129.71$ 0.003% -$ 0.000%  $             - 0.000%  $             - 0.000%

Marketing/Foundation -$ 0.000% -$ 0.000%  $             - 0.000%  $             - 0.000%

Cottages 17,775.33$ 0.399% 11,198.26$ 0.330% 22,113.20$ 0.479% 14,005.90$ 0.374%

Diversional Therapy 1,696.27$ 0.038% 3,075.09$ 0.091% 2,844.32$ 0.062% 2,048.81$ 0.055%

Financial Mgt. 634.42$ 0.014% 902.27$ 0.027% 483.14$ 0.010% 7,472.44$ 0.199%

Housekeeping 3,466.06$ 0.078% 1,783.13$ 0.053% 2,340.47$ 0.051% 3,143.61$ 0.084%

Human Resources 34.28$ 0.001% 10.74$ 0.000% 112.20$ 0.002% 61.20$ 0.002%

Human Services 362.72$ 0.008% 148.77$ 0.004% 21.18$ 0.000% 661.71$ 0.018%

Laundry 1,390.57$ 0.031% 1,544.37$ 0.046% 2,268.41$ 0.049% 1,652.34$ 0.044%

LPN 12,716.17$ 0.285% 15,808.78$ 0.466% 15,029.75$ 0.325% 16,691.57$ 0.445%

Maintenance 8,706.38$ 0.195% 7,059.54$ 0.208% 7,699.75$ 0.167% 4,141.46$ 0.111%

Nursing Administration 8,400.77$ 0.189% 9,678.58$ 0.285% 11,573.41$ 0.251% 7,237.00$ 0.193%

RN 28,004.08$ 0.628% 25,386.34$ 0.749% 25,022.29$ 0.542% 23,761.10$ 0.634%

Therapies - PT, OT 4,137.96$ 0.093% 5,446.10$ 0.161% 5,768.52$ 0.125% 3,408.40$ 0.091%

Totals $155,799.68 $112,927.62 $165,075.11 $137,509.67

% of payroll 3.496% 4456596 3.331% 3.658% 3.670%

Grand Traverse Pavilions
Quarterly Overtime Rolling Calendar Lookback
Pay Dates In:

Page 16 of 66

dgratton
Text Box
6



 
 

TO:  Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
FROM: Gerard Bodalski, CEO/Administrator       
RE:  September CEO/Administrator Report 
 
Census (Average Daily Census) 
 Oct-MTD Sept-24 Aug-24 July-24 June-24 May-24 Apr-24 

Medical Care 
Facility (MCF) 

174 168 167 164 166 168 162 

Cottages 61 63 63 60 57 54 54 

 
MCF Sept-24 Aug-24 July-24 June-24 May-24 Apr-24 

Admissions & Re-admits 52 63 63 55 68 68 

Discharges 48 61 59 62 61 66 

MMC Referrals 169 215 208 169 166 183 

MMC Denied 26 41 38 27 37 35 

Transfers to LTC 3 2 3 3 2 3 

 
Cottages Sept-24 Aug-24 July-24 June-24 May-24 Apr-24 

Admissions 3 3 3 5 2 3 

Respite 6 6 5 4 6 3 

Discharges  0 0 2 1 2 2 

 
Finance 

 Sept-24 August-24 July-24 June-24 May-24 Apr-24 

Combined Net Income $106,264 **$1,101,297 $44,212 $77,019 $178,240 $66,406 

MCF   
Net Income 

$124,307 $1,122,407 $67,724 $106,343 $140,058 $102,075 

Cottage  
Net Income 

$(18,043) $(21,110) $(22,511) $(29,324) *$38,182 $(35,669) 

Cash Balance $3,615,910 $3,506,346 $3,438,728 $3,317,575 $2,971,674 $2,970,769 

A/R Days Sales 
Outstanding 

60 60 54 54 55 48 

*Scholarship funds of $70,939.36 received from GTP Foundation. 
**Notified of cost settlement from 10/1/22 – 9/30/23 of $1,024,304. 

  

MCF Operating Expenses PPD History   

 Sept-24 Aug-24 July-24 June-24 May-24 Apr-24 

MCF Operating Expenses 
Actual PPD 

$469 $452 $457 $465 $463 $458 

MCF Operating Expenses 
Budgeted PPD 

$457 $453 $453 $457 $453 $457 

Variance 
(unfavorable)/favorable 

$(12) $1 $(4)  $(8)  $(10)  $(1)  

 
           

Facility Reported Incidents 
 Sept-24 Aug-24 July-24 June-24 May-24 Apr-24 

Medical Care Facility 4 5 6 4 2 1 

Page 17 of 66

dgratton
Text Box
7



2 
 

 
Wellness Center 

Numbers of Patients seen: Sept-24 Aug-24 July-24 June-24 May-24 Apr-24 

Medicare A 38 48 43 37 38 34 

Medicare Advantage Skilled 30 35 39 38 43 40 

Private Insurance: Inpatient 2 5 5 2 3 5 

Private Pay: Inpatient 0 2 3 1 0 1 

Auto: Inpatient 1 0 0 0 1 1 

Med A/Rehab Inpatient 
Totals 

71 90 90 78 85 81 

       

Medicaid 2 2 0 0 1 0 

Medicare B: Inpatient 40 38 39 7 38 38 

Medicare B Advantage: 
Inpatient 

14 10 7 40 13 14 

Med B Inpatient Totals 56 50 46 47 52 52 

       

Medicare B: Outpatient 20 21 21 22 22 23 

Medicare B Advantage: 
Outpatient 

51 52 60 46 46 47 

Private Insurance: 
Outpatient 

18 17 18 17 21 20 

Work Compensation: 
Outpatient 

0 0 0 0 1 1 

Private Pay: Outpatient 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Auto: Outpatient 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Outpatient Totals 89 90 99 85 90 91 

       

Numbers of Wellness 
Center Visits: 

      

Aquatic inpatients therapy 
visits 

20 18 2 21 35 17 

Aquatic aftercare visits per 
month 

342 341 325 269 344 303 

Aquatic outpatient PT visits 148 170 206 165 170 195 

Aquatic group class 
participants 

54 86 85 57 74 66 

Land therapy visits (PT, OT, 
SLP) 

208 253 170 214 262 179 

Total Outpatient therapy 
visit 

356 423 462 379 432 395 

       

Outpatient aquatic therapy 
revenue 

42,934.12 47,997.47 53,398.88 46,180.65 49,719.42 51,850.07 

Aftercare monthly revenue 3420 3410 3250 2690 3,400 3,030 

Aquatic group class 
revenue 

1080 1720 1700 1140 1,480 1,320 

Cottages visits 34 59 61 59 45 49 

Total Wellness center 
revenue 

47,434.12 53,127.47 60,348.88 50,010.65 54,639.42 56,820.07 

 
Staffing 

 Sept-24 Aug-24 July-24 June-24 May-24 Apr-24 

Hires 35 2 7 21 2 8 

Resignations  5 4 8 7 6 3 

Referrals 9 7 9 2 8 3 

Total # Employees 325 307 311 308 303 324 

Oct MDT # 336 employees 
Talent Sourcing and Recruiting is underway for the following positions: CNAs, UWs 

Page 18 of 66



3 
 

 
Activities 
Recreational Therapists in the life enrichment department continue to complete video chats 
throughout the month for 6 residents over FaceTime or Google Duo. 
 
Activities, Special Events and Outings that occurred in September included small group activities 
such as Bird Care; Card Group including Euchre and Uno, Word Games (Name that Tune and 
Scategories); and Creative Kitchen group baking items for mocktail hour such as chocolate chip 
oatmeal bars and Oreo dessert. Residents engage in arts and crafts with creative coloring, autumn 
floral arrangements and pinwheels. Men’s group continues with playing card and board games as 
well as poker. In addition to helping fold the weekly Pavilions Post, residents continue to attend book 
club meetings with the start of their second book, The Four Winds this month. Residents continue to 
check out books from the book mobile that visits monthly with rotating reading material to check out. 
Residents participated in morning stretch/exercise groups throughout the week. Song circle group 
continues to take place throughout the building including Maple rehab pavilion as a morning and 
afternoon activity in hallways and common areas. Large group activities that were held included: 
Drum Circles, Bingo, Bingo Store, Popcorn Fridays & Movies and Tuesday Mocktails. Special events 
that took place during September were a donut social, veteran legion motorcycle drive, September 
birthday social and vintage car show out on the grand lawn. The Salvation Army music group and the 
Lyrical Hiker came to perform music for residents in the multipurpose room. Livestreaming of church 
services from Central United Methodist Church, Gaither’s Gospel and St. Francis of Assisi continues 
Sunday’s. Catholic church services were attended with Catholic Mass with Father Joe once this 
month, and Rosary & Holy Communion weekly.  Outings that residents signed up for Walmart and 
Culver’s Lunch Outing. Elm residents have participated in various sensory group activities including-
sensory cart, coloring, crafts and garden group. They engage in song circle twice a week with life 
enrichment staff. They participate in small group morning exercise including afternoon strolls outside. 
Cognitive groups include trivia, Jeopardy, history, categories, large dice games, book clubs and 
jokes. Residents participated in donut socials and creative kitchen. Residents engage in weekly 
intergenerational visits from the children of the Pavilions Day care center and various sing a long 
activity as well as weekly movie and popcorn activity. Elm residents attended an outing to the beach 
this month.  
 
On September 18th, Let’s Talk Food Meeting was held and on September 19th the Pavilions 
Resident Council meeting for residents was held for all pavilions to come together to meet. Elm 
Resident Council was held separately on September 24th.  
   
Environmental Services 

• Our new large bus is getting built. Delivery is looking around mid-December. 

 

• We completed another flooring project in Evergreen 004. Finished in time for a new resident 

moving in. 

 

• Our State Survey went well. We have competed all corrections from our Life Safety citations. 

 

• We submitted a packet for a grant to pay for replacement bulbs for our ActivePure system, 

new filters for our 6 large Air Handlers and upgraded fans for 3 of our large Air Handlers. A 

proposed total of $178,000.00. 

 

• We are finalizing plans for the Pool re-surfacing in December. Our plan is to paint pool area, 

clean all tile after re-surfacing is complete and replace all the flooring in the Beech gym. 

Page 19 of 66



4 
 

 

• We are still waiting for the Front Lobby door replacement. Supplies have started to arrive. 

Once everything is in, we will be able to schedule replacement. We are also looking to replace 

the inner lobby door opener and repair the hinges. 

 

• Hired 2 new Custodians. They are learning fast and are a welcome addition to the team. 

 

• Ordered 4 stair evacuation chairs for the cottages. Will be implementing new policy and 

training soon. 

 

 

 

Page 20 of 66



1 

 

GRAND TRAVERSE PAVILIONS 

MEMORANDUM 

 
Financial Operations Report 

September 2024 

 

Finance 

 Sept-24 August-24 July-24 June-24 May-24 Apr-24 

Combined Net Income $106,264 **$1,101,297 $44,212 $77,019 $178,240 $66,406 

MCF   

Net Income 

$124,307 $1,122,407 $67,724 $106,343 $140,058 $102,075 

Cottage  

Net Income 

$(18,043) $(21,110) $(22,511) $(29,324) *$38,182 $(35,669) 

Cash Balance $3,615,910 $3,506,346 $3,438,728 $3,317,575 $2,971,674 $2,970,769 

A/R Days Sales Outstanding 60 60 54 54 55 48 

*Scholarship funds of $70,939.36 received from GTP Foundation. 

**Notified of cost settlement from 10/1/22 – 9/30/23 of $1,024,304. 

  

MCF Operating Expenses PPD History   

 Sept-24 Aug-24 July-24 June-24 May-24 Apr-24 

MCF Operating Expenses 

Actual PPD 

$469 $452 $457 $465 $463 $458 

MCF Operating Expenses 

Budgeted PPD 

$457 $453 $453 $457 $453 $457 

Variance 

(unfavorable)/favorable 

$(12) $1 $(4)  $(8)  $(10)  $(1)  

 

Grand Traverse Pavilions Combined 

 

REVENUE:      

The overall revenue for the Pavilions in September was $2,808,267 resulting in a favorable 
budget variance of $446,664.   
         

EXPENSES:        
The total overall operating expenses for the Pavilions in September were $2,702,003 resulting 
in an unfavorable variance to budget of $381,705.  

     
NET INCOME/LOSS: 

There was net income of $106,264 from the combined programs of the Pavilions in September 
resulting in a favorable budget variance of $64,959.  

 
OPERATING CASH:     

Total cash at month-end was $3,615,910. There was a net increase (more brought in than was 
spent) in overall cash of $109,564 for the month.  
 
There was one significant anticipated cash inflow during the month—the receipt of enhanced 
Quality Assurance Supplement payment of $41,676 to reflect our higher occupancy.    
 
The schedule of irregular payments includes an adjustment to the expected timing of one item 
from November to October.   
  

Page 21 of 66

dgratton
Text Box
8



2 

 

VOUCHERS:        
Purchase orders, invoices, checks written, and supporting documentation were reviewed for 
voucher numbers 5577-5583 for the month of September and were in order without exception.  

 
 

Grand Traverse Medical Care 

REVENUE:    
The census for September averaged 168 residents which was twenty-three above the 
budgeted census and one more than the prior month.  Private pay census was eight above 
budget, Medicare was six above budget, Medicaid was fifteen above budget and Hospice was 
six below the budgeted census.  The occupancy for September was 70% of licensed beds and 
81% of available beds.    As a reminder, available beds increased from 182 to 207 as of July 1.  
Year to date occupancy is 68% of licensed beds and 85% of available beds. 
 
The average rate per patient day (“PPD”) for resident revenue was $3.96 under budget 
(unfavorable) which was driven by lower outpatient therapy than budgeted.   
 
Other revenue was $378,636 on a budget of $136,798 resulting in a favorable variance of 
$241,838 for the month.  This included insurance proceeds related to the claim on the bus of 
$98,000 and additional Quality Assurance revenue due to revised Medicaid rate limits of 
$47,406.  Other than those items, the amounts were in line with prior months. 
 
Total revenue was $516,335 more than budgeted for the month. 
 
The Institutional Special Needs Plan sponsored by Longevity Health went live on October 1, 
2024.  As a reminder, for those long-term residents who chose the plan will benefit from 
systems designed to reduce hospitalizations and Emergency Room visitations, improve 
resident care, provide flexibility for providing supplemental therapy, improve QM measures 
and, depending on enrollment, add revenue to the organization.  There are 14 residents 
enrolled in this program for the first month.  Enrollment efforts are ongoing. 
 
We continue to explore the planning opportunity to mitigate future Medicaid rate decreases by 
working with Warner Norcross & Judd and Plante Moran to refine recommendations necessary 
to implement the Medicaid rate management strategic planning recommendation to reduce 
costs allocated to the Cottages.   
 

 
EXPENSES:   
  Operating Expenses were $12.75 per patient day more than budgeted for the month resulting 

in a flexed unfavorable variance of $63,763.  This compares to 3.83 per patient day and 
$19,513 variance in July. 

 
 Once again, all of the over budget expenses were offset by the Recruitment and Retention 

Grant and the Direct Care Worker Wage Reimbursement payments.   Legal fees recorded in 
September totaled $11,445.  

 
 
NET INCOME/LOSS: 

Grand Traverse Medical Care produced net income of $124,307 for the month, which was 
$143,041 better than budgeted.  

Page 22 of 66



3 

 

 
RECEIVABLES: 

Days Revenue Outstanding (“DRO”) is 60 days as of 9/30/2024.  This is the same as of 
8/31/2024.  Our goal for 2024 is to reduce that number to 45 days.   
 
The amount outstanding waiting Medicaid approval of applications (Medicaid Pending) at the 
end of September is $165,168 (a decrease of $140k).  These remaining amounts will be paid 
after Medicaid is approved.  
 
Amounts due for cottage rents and services decreased by $74k in September due to receiving 
two payments from PACE North during the month and payment of past due amounts by private 
pay residents. 
 
Our former biller stepped in beginning September 5 to assist with rebilling our 1/1/2023 
through 9/30/2023 Medicaid claims so the State of Michigan can process our full net Medicaid 
cost settlements for 2022 and 2023 approximating $2.8M. As of October 17, all claims have 
been submitted through 9/30/2023 and we are waiting for the claims from June through 
September to be adjudicated and she is reworking those claims that have denied. 
 
Our new Business Account Manager began work on September 30 and is off to a good start.  
She is focusing on monitoring and managing Medicaid pending cases and our private pay 
collections for nursing home residents. 
 
Our former business office manager has agreed to assist part time in rebilling insurance claims 
that were denied when first submitted. 
 
Our current business office manager is focused on resolving certification and billing issues with 
WPS and Priority Health in addition to following up on all overdue amounts from cottage 
residents. 
 
 

The Cottages 
 
REVENUE:  

Total revenue of $284,850 generated a $48,271 unfavorable variance to the budget.    
 
The average leased occupancy for the Cottages-Assisted Living was 55 apartments (plus 2 
spouses) during the month (6 below budget, two higher than the prior month), representing 
71% occupancy.  In addition, there were 128 days (average of 4 per night) of overnight respite 
provided during the month (50 less than the prior month).   Hawthorn Lofts-Independent Living 
average census was 2 residents per day for 67% occupancy. Total average census of 63 
residents (same as the prior month). 
 
As of October 1, there are no Waiver participants receiving care at the cottages. 

 
EXPENSES:  

Expenses for September (before depreciation) were $279,571 which was above the budgeted 
amount by $29,811 for an unfavorable variance.  
 
 

Page 23 of 66



4 

 

NET INCOME/LOSS: 
The program had a net loss for the month of $18,043 resulting in an unfavorable variance of 
$78,082. 
 

Unassigned Fund Balance 
 

Approved 2024 Operating Budget       $ 28.7M   
Unassigned Fund Balance Target Percentage                20% 
Unassigned Fund Balance Target Amount                 $5.7M 
Current Unassigned Fund Balance*          $3.6M 
Current Fund Balance as a percentage of Operating Budget         13%  
Amount Available Above/ (Below) Target      ($2.1)M 
 
*Fund balance is different from a cash balance as it includes other assets and is net of current 
liabilities.  Those items do not generally change significantly so we are reporting here on the cash 
balance amount.  The policy requires a review of the actual fund balance annually. 
 
 

Page 24 of 66



Page 25 of 66



Page 26 of 66



Page 27 of 66



Page 28 of 66



Page 29 of 66



Page 30 of 66



Page 31 of 66



Page 32 of 66



Page 33 of 66



Page 34 of 66



Page 35 of 66



Page 36 of 66



Page 37 of 66



Page 38 of 66



Estimated

Completion

Building, Grounds and Fixed Equipment 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 Date Notes

Roof Replacement-Birch Pavilion 115,000           May-25 Need to re-quote for actual cost

Roof Replacement-Aspen Pavilion 115,000        May-26 Estimate to be revised based on costs for Birch roof

Pool Resurface 27,250                Dec-24 Resurface will be completed between Dec 26-31

Pool Re-paint 6,000                  Dec-24 Pool area re-paint during pool closure before re-surface project

Pool Deck Repair 15,000          2026 Deck still in decent condition

Main building Asphalt Repairs 10,000                9,500                Nov-24 Repairs need done before winter. Sealcoating/lines in Spring '25

Poplar Gym Remodel, Carpet 16,000             Spring-25 All Carpet areas replacement

Poplar Gym Remodel, Paint 10,000             Spring-25 All walls in Gym, Offices, Bathrooms and all door jams

Beech Gym Remodel, Carpet Labor 3,260                  Dec-24 Carpet purchased, Only labor costs, install scheduled Dec 20-23

Beech Gym Remodel, Paint 10,000             Spring-25 All walls in Gym, Offices, Bathrooms and all door jams

New signage campus wide 25,000             Summer-25 New signs, posts, parking garage sign, new wellness center sign

Concrete sidewalk repairs 30,000             30,000          30,000             30,000             Spring-25 Per year for next 3-4 years, over 10K sqft of concrete needs repair

Outside Walk-in Freezer 40,000          Jun-26 Freezer is beyond repair, over 10 years old,outdated freon

Hawthorn Boiler 25,000             Spring-25 Boiler is over 15 years old, rotted components and multiple repairs

Infection Control Grant submitted 9/27/2024

ActivePure UV light bulbs 92,024             2 year replacement requirement. Price locked through 2026

Air Handler Filters, 3 sets per AHU 11,722             If not approved by grant, still need to purchase. Filters are overdue 

Air Handler Upgrades, Birch, Elm, Rehab 75,000             Birch has all equip waiting for install. Elm & Rehab are new purchase/install

Movable Equipment
Kubota Utility Vehicle 25,000             Spring-25 Replaces Polaris UTV (used daily, all year) Vehicle is unrepairable

Husqvarna Robot Mowers 40,000             Mar-25 Saves on many different costs and labor hours, possible incentives

Dump Trailer 9,000                Spring-25 We have no means of hauling leaves/mulch/debris to dump

Commercial Washer and Dryer 20,000             Jul-24 Both are over 15 years old

Floor care Equipment 10,000             10,000          10,000             2025/2026 For future large equip replacements

Furniture replacements 20,000             20,000          20,000             2025 Need good quality furniture in rooms and common areas to hold up to residents.

Lawn Equip replacements 10,000             10,000          10,000             Apr-25 Lawn mowers and small equip repairs/replacements

Totals EVS 46,510                553,246           240,000        70,000             30,000             

Information Technology

Replace copiers/scanners 100,000      

Replace computer servers 100,000      

  Total Information Technology -                200,000      -            -              -              

Total Budget 46,510          753,246      240,000    70,000        30,000        

Infection Control Grant Total: $178,746 State will reimburse after purchase (if approved)

Grand Traverse Pavilions Medical Care Facility

Capital Budget

Q4 2024 to 2028

Page 39 of 66

dgratton
Text Box
9



Page 40 of 66

dgratton
Text Box
10



Page 41 of 66



Page 42 of 66



Page 43 of 66

dgratton
Text Box
11



Page 44 of 66



Page 45 of 66



Page 46 of 66



Page 47 of 66

dgratton
Text Box
12



Page 48 of 66



Page 49 of 66



Page 50 of 66



Page 51 of 66

dgratton
Text Box
13



Page 52 of 66



Page 53 of 66



Page 54 of 66



 

MEMORANDUM 

 

DATE:    October 24, 2024 

TO:  Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 

FROM: Gerard Bodalski, Administrator/CEO 

RE:   Proposed 2025 Non-Union Wage Recommendation   

 

Union negotiations have been completed for the next three-year cycle. We are recommending 

an average 4% wage increase for non-union employees with flexibility for outliers. In addition, 

employees will receive retention pay equal to sixty-five cents ($.65) per hour for each hour 

actually worked between December 1, 2023 and November 30, 2024. To receive retention 

pay, individuals must be employed at the time of payment, which will be prior to December 25, 

2024. 

 

Thank you for your consideration.  

 

Page 55 of 66

dgratton
Text Box
14



Page 56 of 66

dgratton
Text Box
15

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box
Cash Reserves 



Page 57 of 66



Page 58 of 66



Page 59 of 66



Page 60 of 66



Page 61 of 66



Page 62 of 66



Page 63 of 66



 
 

GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 

1000 Pavilions Circle, Traverse City, MI 49684 
Telephone Number: 932-3000 

 
Resolution 2024 - 3 

Grand Traverse Pavilions/Cottages 
 

2025 Cottage Rates 
 
 WHEREAS,  The governing body requires that an annual operation budget be adopted, 

   and 
 
 WHEREAS,  sound management practices recognize the value of budget both as a  

   blueprint and an evaluation tool, and 
 
 WHEREAS,  an operational budget provides the basis for all expenditures levels  

   needed to provide appropriate services, and 
 
 THEREFORE 
 BE IT RESOLVED, that the charge for routine services provided on and after January 1, 2025 

  by the  Grand Traverse Pavilions/Cottages is as follows: 
 

Evergreen & Hawthorn Cottages - Assisted Living 
 

(Rates vary according to size of apartment but range between:) 
$2,500.00 - $6,200.00 

 
Hawthorn Lofts - Independent Living 

(Rates vary according to size of apartment but range between:) 
$3,250.00 - $4,000.00 

 
Willow Cottage - Assisted Living 

Suite     $6,300.00 
 

Second occupant for all Cottages $600  
 

Respite: 
Basic Services - $225.00 per night 
Expanded Services - $325.00 per night 

 
 
 APPROVED       ____             
 DISAPPROVED ____              
 
 at the October 31, 2024 meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of Health and 
 Human Services Board. 
 
   ___________________________________________________________ 
   Mary Marois, Chair 
   Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 
   __________________       
   Date 

Page 64 of 66

dgratton
Text Box
16



Page 65 of 66

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box
17



Page 66 of 66

dgratton
Text Box


